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PREFACE.

Thiz accownt of the Soke of Spaldwick was written
in the first place for the © Huntingdonshire Post.” Ii
was then hought that it would be well fo reprintg it ina
more permancnt form, in the hope that other Parishes
might be similarly treated, ond thus that the greal want of
a County History of Huntingdon might, fo some extent, be
met. Thanks are especially due to Henry Dawson, Esg.,
Editor of the * Huntingfoashire Poat,” and his Siaff, for
the cars taken in correcling the vorious migprings—
inevitabls fo @ newspaper,—and also to the Revd. G. E.
Sharland, the Revd, W. M. Noble, and the Revd. T. M.
N, Owen, for eommunicating several intevesting facts, and
particularly to the first-named of these three gentlemen
for kindly contributing mere than half the illustrations,

8. INSKIP LADDS.

Market Plaes,
Huyntingdon,
Easter, 1902,
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‘The Soke of Spaldwick.

————— .

N the year 831, when Hthelrsd the Unready
was King of England,Spaldwick belongud to
a8 pobls Dake, Brithnoth by same. Foar

years previgusly Brichnoih had attacked the Dane s .
atMalden, in Essex, and deleated Lhem with graat
slaaghter, and they oDow returned, vowing
rengancs. [t would appear that Brithnoth was
away from bome, for he hurried back to Malden,
and coming to the Abbay of Ramasy on Lis wr{.
he rrguestsd entertninment and provision for his
men; the Abbot refused (o entertain amy but
himself and seven companions, wherevpon he
prassed on to Ely, where he and his men wera
hoapitably received, and on the merrow, coalng
into the ptet House, and reiurning thanks to
tha Abbot and Convent, be in reompense imme-
dll“']‘#lﬂ tham the capital manor of Spaldwick,
and others, and, ea certain conditions, Semer-
aham and many other st teas besid. s,

And an, Bpald wick having come into the poses-
sion of the Monke of Ely, wa hear littls more of
it until Willism the Norman caused the famous
Domeaday Book to ba compiled. Ons thing, -
howevar, wa do hear: Bishop Ardelwold baving.
parchased Bluntisham bstween the years 1008
wnd 1015, and & lnwsuit following, it was stated
in evidgnos that “in the whole County of
Huntingdon, there was not land so0 Ffree, which
through forfaiture eonld not be loet, exeepting
two hides near Spaldwick.” EKing Edward tle
Confessor’s Charter to the Abbey of Ely confirms
to it * Spaldwick with fta lE:numnm,” whick
we fake to mesn Btow, ton, Barham, sod
Little Catworth, :

When Domeedsy Book was ordered to be com-,
piled, the Abbot of Ely caused a schedule of the
Abbey properly to ba drawn up, of which the
following i & translation of the part relating to,
Spaldwick . —

*In aldwick the Abhot of Ely had one
Manor of 16 hides paying geld, between the
Manor and the lamlets of Biow, Easton and
Barhuw, and 15 ploaghs com till the land; ihat
Lord bad 4 carucstes ia demeans in Lhaioland
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over and above that which paid geld, and 42
villaios and § borderera, Now the Abbot of Eiy
has there 4 ploughs, and T beasts, and 30 hogas,
and one hund nod twenty sheep, and 1 horss,
and 4 hives of bees, and 1 mill nnduri.n%E
shillings, snd 50 villeins, and 10 bordersrs. Be-
tween all thess, tweniy-five ploughs, amd one
bundred and sixty scres of meadow. Papnage in
woods 60 seres. In the time of Eing Edward,
with all which belonge thers, worth sixteen
pounds, and mnow twenty-two pounds. Alto-
gother, 3 milea long and 2 milea broad. (The
mila wae equal to about 1} modern milea) In
Catworth, Abbot Turstin had § hides paying geld,
Hamlet of Bpaldwick, and 8 villvine with 8
ploughs. Now the Abboi of Ely bas it end T
villeins with two ploughs. And this is essessed
in Spaldwink."

This sehedule, now koown aa the Toguisitio
Elienasis, being broaght befors the Dowmesday
Commissioners, they took mvidence therson, and
recorded it in Domesday Book in the following
‘terms i —

“THR LAND OF THE ABBOT OF RLY.

“ a manor—In Bpaldwick the Abbot of Ely had
16 hiden paying geld, There is land for 15
plougha. Thers are still on the demesne &
ploaghs on & hides of this land, and 50 villeina
sod 10 borderers, bavieg 26 ploughs, Thers js 1
mill worth 2 sbillings yeeriy, snd 160 acres of
maadow end 60 acres of pannage in woods, In
the time of King Edward worth 18 pounds, oo w
‘B2 pounds.

“g mamnor—In Lirtla Catworth, hamlet of
B‘Eﬂdtﬂict, wore § bides of land paying gebb,
There is Iund for 4 ploughs. Thers ate vow 7
villaina baving two ploughs,

“THR LAND OF WILLIAM DE WARREN,

“goc.—In the other Cetworth wes 1 hide
paying geld. Thers ia land for lﬁlough.
This is a soe. Now held by Tored, of William,
and lis has thers 1 plougli amd 1 borderer,
and 12 acres of meadow, Worth 30 sbillings
All this soc beloogs to Kimbolton.

. “OLATME,

“Im Little Catworth the same Ulwyn (e Dhrgm

~chit.) bhad 1 hide, over which King Edwsid
always had enc and soc, but he wea able to give
‘the land to whom he would, and to seil i, But
the men of the Counly say that the Eing bad
given the land to Earl Waltheof.

“The County testifies that the third part of
"half & hide which lies in Enston, and ]JBG,'G geld in
‘Bedfordahire, balongs to the Abbot of Ely's Manor
of Spaldwick, and so the Abbot had it in tha time
of Eing BEdwerd, and for filve yesrs after the
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coming of King William. This, Bustacs [orcilbly
took from the church, and rutaiug it,"

About twenty years later Richard, Abbot of
Ely, obtained the King's licence and the Pops's
conssnt to maks hie Abbacy into a Bishopric;—
buk, dying before the chavge was completed, he
was succeeded by Hacvey. Bishop of Bangor, who
in 110¢ became firat Bishop of Ely; and to com-
pensute the Bisbop of Lincolm, out of whoas
diocess the newly furmed Bishopric wes token,
the Monks of Ely made over to bim the Muanor
of Bpaldwick,

Spuldwick, during the time that it belonged to
the Abbay of Ely, provided the Abbey with pro-
virions for two weska in sach year.

It sesms reasonable Lo rupposs that no Chorch
exiated in the Manor at the vime of Domendsy, or
iv would be mentioned io thet Book, as quite half
the Cnurclies of luntingdonahirs are, and indesd
the wrohiteciure of the Churches of Spsldwick,
dtow end Barbam poists to their hoving been
bullt soan after the Munor same meto the hands
of the Blahop of Lingoln, wnile Buston ehurch
wum probably not buwilt until abeut the year 1250,
Tiws Biattop of Lineoln, having eomw into posscs-
sion of the 5 ke of Bpuldwick, appeara 10 have
retniiied £ himself the prineipal Manor of Spald-
wick, but formed the Manor of Brow into B
Probi=md, under tha title of Stow Longa, sudow-
ing it alan with the lmpropriats Rectory snd
Advowson of the L“lmr\cll-:mu[ Bpaldwick ; and
anme tWo centuries Jater when the Prebend of
8¢, Urnnis was endowed with part of the tithes of
si"l‘m witk, he took, alao, its name as & sudsidiary
title.

In the 11rh year of Henry [11 (1226-7), an {a-
sp=ximna was made of o Desd daced 16th of King
John (1214.55, gronting to Hugh, Bishop of Lin-
enip, permiasion to impark and eesart, at will,
the woods au Buckden and Spald wick, &o., and
the grove at Swow, saviog to the Kirg ooly the
hunting. The same de-d graots slan to the
]ll_ulli'nnp, falrs snd markets in any of his Manocrs at
will.

Three years later (1223}, a grant ia meds to
Bishop: Hugh, of deer ieaps &t his parks at
Bugkden, Bpifdwiut snd Liddington,

At e perambulation of woods and forests in Co.
Iantingdon, taken im 1301, it was proved that -
Heory 11, in 1154, bhad afforested the whole
County, sspecially mentioning a long list of
woods and groves affarested to the serious losa of
the Lordas thereol; amongst theas arei—

“ A grove of Robert Wyne at Easton.
A grove of tha Bishop of Linasln at Stow.
A grove of Pater de Herdowyko at Esston,'”

Apnd sgain,in 1300, the Bishop obtains a licence

to impark his wood of Long Stow, with 100
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aoree of land adjsining, in Co. Huntingdom. A%

the taxstion of 1291, the Apiritualities of the

Vicarage of 3paldwick wers taxed at £46:81;

and of the Prebandal Caureh of Sow, with iis

cha, . ({Eston, Barham and Little (atworth), at
1

i 81
MMiver Buatton (Bishop of Limeoln 1280 1300)
wes called opom to amawer 8 writ of GQuo
Warranto sa to hjs claim to have view of Frank
Pladge in his Monors of Buckden, Bp:ldwick and
Biilton, snd other liberties, to whieh be replied
that he claimad to bave all liberties in the ofere-
said Manors, ercepé murder, beeause he and all
his predscessora biad had them hitherto, sices Lhe
time when the memory of man runneth poc to
the contrary, and he said that he had gallows
and tumbeell in the Manori of Spaldwick and
Bockden. And as to muorder, he said that e aod
bis men were quit of murnler by wvirine of &
wharier duted 1 Richard [ lie said Durther that
he clnimed to bold the View of Frank Pledge
twiga a yaar, without ihe presence of e King's
Bailif, and Lhat be gave nothing te the King for
holding the View,

Whether his claim was sllowed we know not.

From an Inquisition taken im the reign of
Bdward 1. we learn that the Bishop of Livcoln
then had in the Hoke of Spaldwick: — In
demesna—8 carucates of lamd and 20 acres nf
pasture, 24 other norce of pasture dispersed sbout,
& wood of 20 sores called Stow Grove, s Puk of
20 acres, s garden, and two windmills.

The Prior of Ssone]n{d beld a virgate of land in
Btow, for which he paid the Bishop 12 shillinga,
The Bishop also had the following villeins render-
ing all customary suit and servig s, viz.i—In the
Tewnahip of Spaldwick 19 villeina holding 6]
wirgates at am anmuoal tent of G abillings per
wirgate. In tbe Hamlet of Easton 10 wvilleina
holding & virgaie each, and 18 holding haifa
virgate each.

In the llamlst of Upthorpe 18 villeing holding
9 wirgates at o rent of 4 shillings par vicgate.

In the Hamiet of Brow 18 villeins holding 10
viegates at 3 shillings per virgate.

In the Hemlet of Little Catworth 24 villeina
holding 15§ virgates,

The Hamlet of Barbam 20 villeian holding 12§

e,
he Hamlet of Little Catworth paid the Bisbop
6 penea for ane acra.

he Town of Spaldwick with the Soke still
answers for 15 hides.

At the samas Inguisition Lady Josn de Bobun
had 15 villeins in the [Eamlet collad Btow (fhis 12
Overefoi, n the Parish of Eimbolien', each
holding half a virgate of lend, Thomas da
Bekering beld ons hide of land in Little Untworth
which Richard de Moleaworth formerly beld, and
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